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lndependent Auditor's RePort
To the Board of Directors
Amarillo Economic Development Corporation
Amarillo, Texas

Report on the Financial Sfafemenfs

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Amarillo Economic Development
Corporation (AEDC), a component unit of the City of Amarillo, as of and for the years ended
September 30, 2016 and 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise AEDC's basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.
M a n a g e menf

's Resp o nsi b i I ity fo r th e F i n an c i al SÚaÚemenfs

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accõrdance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
Au ditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility ís to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audíting
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
êtafements, whether due to fraud or error. ln making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to AEDC's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of AEDC's internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a

basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions
ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of AEDC as of September 30, 2016 and 2015, and the
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respect¡ve changes in financial position and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Req u ired

S u p pl e m e ntary

I

nform ation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 7-17 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other lnformation
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial statements of
AEDC. The accompanying supplemental information listed in the table of contents, Tables 1 to 6,
is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements.
These tables have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

ln accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 24,2017, on our consideration of AEDC's internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not
to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Sfandards in
considering the AEDC's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Õor,.r'"vYY)"z4rfut-*,7;r-j,u'tlAmarillo, Texas
February 24,2017
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Years Ended September 30, 2016 and 2015
This section of the Amarillo Economic Development Corporation (AEDC) Annual Financial Report
presents discussion and analysis of important aspects of AEDC's financial results during the fiscal
years ended September 30, 2016 and2015. Please read it in conjunction with the basic financial
statements and accompanying notes that follow this discussion.

lntroduction
The Amarillo Economic Development Corporation (AEDC) is the primary economic development
engine of the Amarillo community, focused on industry growth and job creation through business
attraction and retention initiatives. ln 1989, the citizenry of Amarillo approved a measure to
increase the sales tax rate by one-half cent to be dedicated to economic development
programs. The vote proved to be a proactive one, as Amarillo was the second city in Texas to
approve the sales tax for economic development in the first year the program was made available
through the Texas Legislature.

The mission of the AEDC is to attract businesses to Amarillo which offer highly-skilled, highlypaid positions; to expand and retain existing local businesses in Amarillo; and to create a business
environment conducive to entrepreneurship. The AEDC targets companies whose primary
function is to produce goods or services that are then sold outside of the immediate trade area,
thereby introducing new monies into the local economy. This strategy is met by implementing
aggressive business recruitment programs, local business retention and expansion programs,
and promoting the Amarillo, Texas brand worldwide.

ln 2016, the AEDC approved two new projects aimed at providing educational and job training
opportunities in the fields of aviation and veterinary medicine. The AEDC will provide $1.6 million
to assist Amarillo College with a new Aviation Maintenance Facility to be outfitted with the latest
avionic technology so students may achieve licensure from the Federal Aviation Administration.
The AEDC also approved of $15 million in grant funds to Texas Tech University for the
development of a College of Veterinary Medicine. These funds will be used toward the
construction of facilities adjacent to Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center in Amarillo.
The AEDC prompted Bell Helicopter to choose Amarillo as the location for its new delivery center.
The AEDC will fund $6 million of this project and Bell will construct an ultramodern facility to supply
its customers with its state-of-the-art helicopters.
The AEDC continued its partnership with West Texas A&M University through the EnterPrize
Challenge, a local business plan competition funded by the AEDC and facilitated by the WT
Enterprise Center. The 21't Annual EnterPrize Challenge awarded seven grants totaling
$500,000 to new and emerging companies expected to create more than 39 new jobs and make
substantial investments in the regional economy. To date, 83 businesses have received cash
grants totaling more than $5.6 million, resulting in 683 new jobs and $1 15 million in new revenue
to the Amarillo economy. By contractual agreement, Texas Panhandle Regional Development
Corporation (TPRDC) acts as the small business financing arm of the AEDC. TPRDC provides
small business financing for owner-occupied commercial real estate. This Certified Development
Company approved four Small Business Administration 504 loans totaling almost $1 million,
which leveraged $1.2 million in bank financing and $343,000 in owner equity. For the year, this
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program was responsible for the creation of nine new
2016 totaling just under $5.6 million.

jobs. TPRDC also funded four loans

in

Financial Highlights
a

The assets of AEDC exceeded its liabilities (net position) at the close of the most recent fiscal
year by $78.1 million, which is up $8.2 million compared to 2015.

a

The AEDC has hit new record highs in sales tax revenue the last few fiscal years. AEDC had
$18.7 million in sales tax revenue in 2016 compared to $18.5 million in 2015, $18.1 million in
2014,$17.4 million in 2013, and $16.1 million in2012

a

The AEDC has a great deal of liquidity. ln 2Q16, AEDC had $25.9 million in unrestricted cash
and investments and sales tax receivable of $1.5 million from the State versus $5.5 million in
current liabilities. ln 2015, AEDC had $17.8 million in unrestricted cash and investments and
sales tax receivable of $1.5 million from the State versus $5.3 million in current liabilities.

Overview of the Financial Statements
For financial reporting purposes, AEDC is a component unit of the City of Amarillo (City) and
information concerning it is included in the City's government-wide financial statements because
of the City's oversight responsibility in AEDC's affairs.
Effective October 1,2001, the City adopted the provisions of Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements-and Management's Drscussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments,
issued by the GovernmentalAccounting Standards Board. Accordingly, its component units were
required to simultaneously adopt this Statement with respect to their financial statements. This
discussion is intended to serve as an explanation of the effect of accounting principles on the
financial statements of AEDC.
Because it has been AEDC's intent to affect a substantial portion of its economic incentives by
leasing and revolving loan activities, periodic determination of revenues, expenses, and net
income has been deemed appropriate; consequently, AEDC has followed accounting policies
similar to those applicable to proprietary funds of governmental entities. Because AEDC is a
single-program entity (economic development) that uses proprietary fund accounting principles,
it is required to present only "enterprise fund financial statements," as presented prior to the
adoption of Statement No. 34, although the presentation of these fund financial statements is
somewhat changed.

To assure that the majority of AEDC's funds were spent on business attraction, retention and
expansion, AEDC limits the amount of sales tax allocated to general and administrative expenses
initiatives
including economic development projects and expenses directly related to such projects. To
reflect this allocation, AEDC accounts for general and administrative expenses in a fund entitled
"Operating Fund" and economic development project activities in the "Project Fund."

to 10%. The balance of sales tax revenues are spent on economic development
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Years Ended September 30, 2016 and 2015
Like private sector businesses, the governmental accounting principles applicable to proprietary
funds require the presentation of three basic financial statements: a statement of net position, a
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and a statement of cash flows.
However, unlike private sector businesses, governmental entities focus on limitations on the use
of net position (net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted) rather than on the
source of those assets. Additionally, the statement of cash flows for a governmental entity is
reported in four categories (operating, noncapital financing, capital and related financing, and
investing) as opposed to the three categories used in the private sector, and there are certain
differences in how the various categories of cash flows are defined.
The statement of net position presents information on all of AEDC's assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net position. As a general rule, increases or decreases
in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of a governmental
entity is improving or deteriorating. However, with AEDC, this may not be the case. AEDC's
mission is to attract industry in an effort to increase employment in the City. The pursuit of new
industry and job creation may actually cause net position to decrease over time.

The statement of revenue, expenses and changes in net position presents information showing
how AEDC's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position
are repoded as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for
some items that will not result in cash flows until future fiscal periods (e.9., uncollected sales tax
revenues). The statement of cash flows presents information showing the changes in cash and
cash equivalents of AEDC during the fiscal year including financing, investing and operating
activities regardless of the timing of the related revenues and expenses applicable to the
operating activities. The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the financial statements, including
significant accounting policies, details regarding cash and investments, receivables, leasing
activities, long-term debt, and transactions with the City.

Financial Analysis
The following table reflects a comparison of AEDC's net position as of September 30, 2Q16,lo
the prior year:
Amarillo Economic Development Corporation - Net Position
(in thousands)

September

30,
2015

2016

Current assets
Restricted assets
Plant and equipment, net
Other noncurrent assets
Total assets

2016

Percent

27,063
4,045

26.00o/o

,900

13,265
87,752

10.72%
60.30%

$ 135,829 $

132,125

100.00%

35,318

$

$

4,051
14,560
81

o

2.98%
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September

2016

30,

2015

2016

Percent

(Continued)
Deferred outflows of resources

$

Cunent and restricted liabilities
Noncunent liabilities

$

Total liabilities
Net position
Net inrcstment in capital assets
Restricted for debt senice
Unrestricted
Total net position

231

$
$

343

100.00%

5,766

10.23o/o

52,002

56,722

89.77o/o

$

57,928 $

62,488

100.00%

$

11,089

$

10,901

14.19o/o

63,431

3,577
55,502

81.19o/o

78,132 $

69,980

100.00%

5,926

3,612

$

4.620/o

Changes in AEDC's Statement of Net Position can be better explained by following the flow of

funds. AEDC issued $38.8 million in bonds in fiscal yeat 201Q. The bond proceeds are
considered restricted assets. Thus, bond proceeds increased restricted assets along with
restricted net position. As bond proceeds are expended during construction, the construction-inprogress account increases and restricted assets decrease.

Generally, construction in progress is converted to a fixed asset at completion. However, since
AEDC leases the completed project, the construction-in-progress account is converted to a direct
financing lease instead of plant and equipment. While a project is in the construction phase,
construction-in-progress increases, which is part of plant and equipment. At completion, the
construction project results in a direct financing lease. Therefore, the construction-in-progress
account decreases (which is part of plant and equipment) and the direct financing lease account
increases. However, the direct financing lease account will not increase by the decrease in the
construction-in-progress account. Since the terms of the direct financing lease are very favorable
to the lessee, a large expense is also recognized at the completion of a project. Moreover, as a
company meets its performance requirements with AEDC, all or a portion of the direct financing
lease is forgiven, resulting in future expenses. The majority of these leases are with Bell
Helicopter, which is AEDC's largest single economic development client. As the company meets
its performance requirements with AEDC, additional amounts of the direct financing lease will
also þe charged to loan and lease incentives and allowances expense. lf the company does not
meet its peformance requirements with AEDC, all or a portion of the lease will have to be paid
by the company.
Constructing new facilities is one of AEDC's main economic development program offerings. ln
2016, plant and equipment increased $1.3 million, which is primarily due to an increase of $1.2
million in construction-in-progress. The increase in construction-in-progress is largely attributable
to construction of railway infrastructure to service the new Gestamp facility at CenterPort. ln
2015, plant and equipment decreased by $Z.g million, due to the contribution of streets and
drainage assets to the City after completion at CenterPort. Construction-in-progress decreased
to $-0- in 2015 from $12.5 million in 2Q14. The decrease was due to the completion of
construction of the new Coca-Cola Facility, the completion of buildings improvements for MWI
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Veterinary Supply Co., completion of facility repairs and completion of roadway construction
improvements to help develop CenterPort and Folsom Road.
Direct financing leases are AEDC's largest single asset and amounted to $74.8 million and $81.3
million, including both the current portion and the long-term portion for 2016 and 2015,
respectively.
While AEDC has significant net position, most of the net position is already committed to current
AEDC projects. At the end of 2016, the Project Fund had $12.6 million in cash and cash
equivalents, $14.0 million in short-term investments and $1.4 million in receivables from the State
and Federal government for a total of $28.0 million. There was $5.4 million in current liabilities,
leaving a balance of $22.6 million to fund current commitments. AEDC has approximately $8.5
million in current commitments that would normally be funded from the Project Fund. The AEDC
has committed to give up to $3.3 million to a wind energy corporation of which $0.9 million has
already been spent on construction. Additional commitments include, $1.25 million to Amarillo
College for technical training, up to $3 million to Bell Helicopter for a run stand, $0.4 million to
WTAMU to continue to fund their Amarillo campus, $0.5 million to WTAMU for expansion of and
assistance with their Enterprise Center, $0,4 million to Xcel Energy to assist in construction costs
of a new downtown building, $0.5 million to Golden Spread Electric Cooperative as lease
reimbursement, and $70,000 to lnternational Paper as ad valorem tax reimbursement. Additional
commitments due after the 2016117 fiscal year total approximately $27.5 million.
There was $3.7 million in current assets in the Operating Fund at year-end. After subtracting $0.3
million in liabilities and a target reserve of $0.5 million, there is $2.9 million of Operating Funds
available.
The following table reflects the elements of the changes in AEDC's net position for the year ended
September 30,2016 compared to the prior year:

Amarillo Economic Development Corporation - Changes in Net Position
(in thousands)

September 30,
2016
Operating re\enues
Sales taxes
Earnings on inr,estments
Rerenues from lending and leasing & other

$

18,698
79
7,600
26,377

Total operating rer,enues
Operating expenses:
Direct derclopment expenses :
Grants for qualiñ7ing projects
Loan incentires and allowances
Bond interest and fìscal charges
Lease propedy expenses
Professional, contractual and other

3,523
11,013
3,827
886
420

11

2016

2015

$

Percent

18,494
33

70.89%

6,1 91

28.81%

24,718
2,653
13,683
3,848
887
914

0.30%
100.00%

16.39%
51.25o/o

17.81%
4.12%
1.95Yo
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September 30,
2016

2016

Percent

2015

(Continued)

Supporting services:
Personnel expenses
Adlertising and promotion
Other contractual services
Ofice expenses and other charges

1,004

1,023

4.67o/o

4BB

473

2.27%

207

181
142

0.96%

122

21,490

Total operating expenses
Nonoperating Rercnues (Expenses)
Miscellaneous re\enue
Gain (loss) on disposal of property
Contributed capital

325
2,941

23,804
1B

(1,531)

(4,352)

Total nonoperating rerenues (expenses)

3,266

(5,865)

lncrease (decrease) in net position

8,1 53

(4,951)

Net position, beginning, restated for 2015

69,980

$ 78,133 $

Net position, ending

0.57o/o

100.00%
9.95%
90.05%
0.00%
100.00%

74,931
69,980

Similar to prior years, AEDC's largest expense was for loan incentives and allowances in 2016.
ln 2016, AEDC had $1 1 .0 million of expense in loan incentives and allowances compared to $13.7
million in2015, $9.7 million in2014, and $9.6 million in 2013. Most of the expense was in the
forgiveness of loan and lease incentives of $8.8 million relating to the various Bell Helicopter
projects and $1.4 million relating to the Coca-Cola project. The remainder was for various smaller
projects. A portion of the loan is forgiven as the businesses meet their local spending targets.
Grants for qualifying projects and business retention service contracts increased in 2016 to $3.5
million from $2.7 million in 2015.
Grants for qualifying projects were $0.5 million in 2016 and $1 .8 million in 2015. The decrease is
related to funding provided to Bell Helicopter for their Relentless 525 prolect of $0.7 million in
2015. Historically, most of the direct grant expense was in the Amarillo EnterPrize Challenge
program, which was $0.5 million in both 2016 and 2015. The AEDC began the EnterPrize
Challenge program in 1994. EnterPrize Challenge participants must be for-profit businesses in
basic industries that produce goods and services that are exported out of the Amarillo trade area.
Thus, these businesses bring new money into our trade area. Participants must document in their
three-year business plan that at least 75o/o of their sales will come from outside of the Amarillo
area and the jobs will be created in Potter and Randall Counties. To date, through the EnterPrize
Challenge program, 83 businesses have received cash grants of as much as $100,000 each,
totaling more than approximately $S.0 million in grants over the past 20 years.

ln 2016, $3.0 million was spent on business retention service contracts, compare to $0.9 million
in 2015. The increase in funding for 2016 is primarily related to providing Xcel Energy with $1 .1
million for their new corporate headquarters, Texas Tech University with $0.5 million for their SIM
Central location and Amarillo College with $0.4 million for their Tech Training building.
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The AEDC's primary revenues are derived from half-cent sales tax receipts for economic
development. ln 2016, AEDC had $18.7 million in sales tax revenue, compared to $18.5 million
in 2015, $18.1 million in 2014, $17 .4 million in 2013, and $16.1 million in 2012. Sales tax revenue
had increased in each of the last four years prior to 2009. ln 2009, there was a slight decrease
(1.86%) in sales tax revenue. The AEDC had $14.4 million in sales tax revenue in 2009 and
$14.7 million in 2008.

lnvestment income increased slightly in 2016. The AEDC had $79,000 in 2016 and $33,000 in
2015. For liquidity purposes, AEDC invests in only high-quality, short{erm investments and the
interest rate on these short-term investments has been very low. Since AEDC's investment
portfolio is invested mainly in short{erm investments, AEDC's investment earnings are almost
entirely dependent on short{erm interest rates.
The AEDC accomplishes its economic development objectives through direct grants, loans and
financing leases. The loans and leases usually have favorable interest rates along with incentives
for meeting performance requirements. ln 2016, revenues from leasing and loans increased to
$7.6 million and $2.9 million from gains on sale of property during 2016. ln 2015, revenues from
leasing and loans were $6.2 million. The increase from 2015 to 2016 is primarily attributable to
the reversal of $1.7 million of job credits previously recorded under an agreement with GTM due
to the failure to meet performance requirements and $2.9 million from gains on the sale of property
during 2016.

AEDC recognizes the revenue from the loans and leases as income; however, if the companies
meet their performance requirements, an amount is recorded also as a grant expense.
Overall, revenue increased and expenses decreased in 2016 which led to an increase in net
position. ln 2016, revenues were $29.6 million, compared to $24.7 million in 2015. ln 2016,
operating expenses were $21.5 million, compared to $23.8 million 2015. Net position increased
by $A.Z million in2016, compared to a decrease of $5.0 million in 2015. The main reason net
position increased in comparison to 2015 was due to gains of $2.9 million due from the sale of
property during the year, the reversal of $1.7 million in job credit expenses related to GTM, and a
decrease in loan and lease incentives and allowances activity of $2.7 million from 2015. During
2015, AEDC completed the construction of a new facility for Coca-Cola, of which $4.4 million was
expensed through loan incentives and allowances based on the final agreement.

Operating Fund
The following table summarizes the changes in net position of the Operating Fund during the
latest fiscal year compared to the preceding year:
Amarilo Economic

""*ii¡lffi;|;cn::To'",,on
2016

Beginning of year
Sales taxes
Earnings on ¡n\estments and miscellaneous
Professional service agreement
Supporting senices

$

End of year

$

3,251
1

$

,870

3,036
1

o

158

177
(1,820)

$

$

,849

12

3,470

Percent
Change

Change

2015

(1,821)

13

- operating Fund

3,251

215

7.08o/o

21
a

33.33o/o

(1

s)

1.14o/o

'10.73Yo

0.05%

$

219
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10o/o of the sales tax
revenues for administration. The limitation on overhead means 90% of the funds will be used for
direct economic development projects. These non-project costs within support services include
personnel costs, advertising and promotion, routine supplies and other contractual charges, and
are paid from the Operating Fund,

As previously mentioned, AEDC has a limitation of not using more than

Support services were $1.8 million in both 2016 and 2015.

in both 2015 and 2014. Other Operating Fund revenues totaled $170,000 in 2016, $186,000 in
2015, and $226,000 in 2014. Total Operating Fund expenses totaled $1.8 million in both 2016
and 2015. Thus, the Operatíng Fund net position is $3.5 million for2016. The Operating Fund
net position in 2Q15 was $3.3 million. Accumulated funds carry fonruard for administrative and
su pport-type expenses.

Project Fund
The following table summarizes the changes in net position of the Project Fund during the latest
fiscal year compared to the preceding year:
Amarillo Economic Development Corporation - Project Fund
(in thousands)

Percent
2016
Beginning of year, restated for 2015

$

lncreases
Sales taxes
Earnings on inrestments and miscellaneous
lncentiw-related rerenues
Miscellaneous income

$

Change

71,895 $

Total decreases

1.10

16,645

183

34

123.53 %

7,433

6,004

42
1,429

3,266

100.00 %

22,683

4,920

3,523

2,653

12,320
3,827

16,996
3,848

870
(4,676)

19,670

g

(5,166)

76

27,603

Decreases
Direct grants & busines retention
Other incentirc costs
Financing expenses
Contributed capital

Change

16,828

3,266

Total increases

End ofyear

66,729

2015

4,352

Q1)
(4,352)

27,849

(8,179)

74,662 $ 66,729 $

23.80

32.79

%
%

%

(27.51) %
(0.55) %

100.00 %

7,e33

The Project Fund provides for the various econom¡c development projects and pays the debt
service cost on debt issued for economic development projects. AEDC assistance can take
various forms, including direct grants, loans and financing leases. ln 2Q16, Project Fund
expenses totaled $19.7 million and $27.8 million in 2015. Bell Helicopter loan forgiveness was
the largest single project expense. As previously mentioned, a portion of the loan is forgiven as
the company meets its performance requirements.
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Grants for qualifying projects and business retention service contracts increased in 2016 to $3.5
million from $2.7 million in 2Q15. Grants for qualifying projects were $0.5 million in 2016 and $1 .8
million in 2015. The decrease is related to funding provided to Bell Helicopter for the Relentless
525 project of $0.7 million in the prior year. The Amarillo EnterPrize Challenge program which
was awarded $0.5 million in both 2016 and 2015.
ln2Q16, $3.0 million was spent on business retention service contracts with Xcel Energy receiving
$1.1 million for their new corporate headquarters, Golden Spread Electric Cooperative receiving
$0.5 million, Texas Tech University receiving $O.S million, Amarillo College receiving $0.4 million,
and WT Enterprise Center receiving $0.3 million. Partners for Post Secondary Success also
received a grant of $0.2 million. ln 2015, $0.9 million was spent on business retention service
contracts with Golden Spread Electric Cooperative receiving $0.5 million and WT Enterprise
Center receiving $0.3 million. Partners for Post Secondary Success also received a grant of $0.1
million.

lnterest expense remained flat at $3.8 million for both 2016 and 2015. AEDC's interest payment
decreased slightly to $3.8 million in 2016 from $4.1 million in 2015. The remaining difference was
in capitalized interest and amortization of insurance costs. ln 2016, capitalized interest was
$32,000 compared to $222,000 in 2015.
The AEDC regularly makes commitments to qualifying enterprises to make grants or extend credit
and these commitments, if exercised by the recipients, would be paid out of the above net position.

Further information regarding commitments may be found in Note 17 of the accompanying
financial statements.
The AEDC Board of Directors has committed 90% of AEDC's sales tax revenue to the Project
Fund. The Project Fund had $16.8 million in sales tax revenue in 2016 and $16.6 million in2015.
There was a decrease in incentive-related revenues. lncentive-related revenues include interest
derived from loans and capital leases made to qualifying enterprises together with revenues from
operating leases. lncentive-related revenues decreased from $5.3 million in 2015 to $5.0 million
in2016. Overall, the Project Fund's revenue increased to $27.6 million in2016from$22.7 million
in 2Q15. Most of the increase is related to gain on sales of property during the year of $2.9 million
and the recovery of $1.7 million in prior job credits related to GTM. The Project Fund ended with
net position of $74.7 million in 2016 compared to $66.7 million in 2015.

Capital Asset Activity

ln2016, Project Fund net building and improvements increased to $13.3 million, compared to
$13.2 million in 2015. An increase of $0.9 million related to the construction of a railway related
to Gestamp was partially offset by an increase of $0.8 million in accumulated depreciation.
Construction in progress, which is also classified under'property and equipment, net,' increased
to $1.2 million in 2016. This increase was due to the construction of the Gestamp railway ($1 .0
million) and the construction of a water main at CenterPort.

|n2015, Project Fund net building and improvements increased to $13.2 million, compared to
$8.0 million, as restated, in 2014. Net building and improvements had previously been reported
as $13.7 million f or 2014. A portion of the prior period adjustment, $5.7 million, was applied to the
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Years Ended September 30, 2016 and 2015

Project Fund's 2014 building and improvements due to the conveyance of improvements at
CenterPort to the City. The remaining portion, $1.5 million, was primarily a decrease in land held
for future incentives due to the land already being used in prior projects. A major factor causing
the increase in net building and improvements in 2015 was the reclassification of a building at
CenterPort from 'available for sale'to 'buildings and improvements' ($4 million). This building is
now being leased. lmprovements to this same building of $1.7 million were also capitalized during
2015. The net increase in buildings and improvements is combined with a $269,000 increase in
depreciation. Construction-in-progress, which is also classified under'property and equipment,
net,' decreased $12.5 million to $-0- in 2015. This decrease was due to the completion of
construction of the new Coca-Cola Facility ($¿.9 million at the end of 2014 and an additional $5.7
million during 2015), the completion of buildings improvements for MWI Veterinary Supply Co.
($1.6 million at the end of 2Q14 with an additional $82,000 during 2015), completion of facility
repairs ($1 .1 million at the end of 2014) and completion of roadway construction improvements
to help develop CenterPort ($1.0 million atthe end of 2014with an additional $240,000 during
2015), and Folsom Road ($4.5 million at the end of 2014wilh an additional $99,000 during 2015).
All construction in progress was completed by the end of 2Q15 and the assets were either
capitalized, contributed to the City, set up as direct financing leases, or forgiven.
Long-Term Debt Activity

ln 2010, AEDC refunded its 1998 debt and issued about $32.6 million in new debt for a total
issuance of $48.9 million with 2O-year taxable debt. A total of $16.3 million was used to refinance
AEDC's 1998 bonds at more favorable terms, and the new debt was for two projects: Pacific
Cheese and Bell Helicopter. The AEDC issued $38.8 million in 2O-year taxable bonds on
December 15, 2009. The bonds were used for an expansion of the Bell Helicopter facilities and
other projects. The new debt increased AEDC's debt service payments to $8.2 million in 2011
through 2018. The debt service payments will decrease to about $6.2 million from 2019 to 2027 .
The 2007 bond issue debt service will drop off after 2027 and the debt service payments will be
$3.5 million through 2030.
Changes during the 2016 fiscal year are as follows (in thousands):
Revenue bonds (principal) outstanding at beginning of year
Principal maturities

$

60,960
@.450)

Revenue bonds (principal) outstanding at end of year

$
$

56.510

Current portion of outstanding revenue bonds
Long-term portion of outstanding revenue bonds
Total outstanding revenue bonds (principal)
AEDC did not issue any new debt in 2016

16

4,680
51,830

$_16é10

MANAGEMENT'S DISGUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Years Ended September 30, 2016 and 2015
Request for lnformation
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the finances of AEDC. As the
City serves as fiscal agent for AEDC, questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Assistant City
Manager for Financial Services, City of Amarillo, P.O. Box 1971, Amarillo, Texas 79105-1971.
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AMARILLO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2016 and 2015

2016

Project
fund

Operating

fund
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Receivables:
Accounts receivable
Current maturities of direct financing leases
Accrued interest receivable
Due from State of Texas (sales taxes)
Economic development loans - current portion
Other current assets

$

1,382,742
2,000,000

$

8,522,617
13,950,000

Total

$

6,661,378

157,819
6,661,378

352,575

353,444

157,819
869
151,453

9,905,359
15,950,000

1,363,081

1,514,534

1,090,185

1

,090,185
23 778

23,778
31,939,836

35,656,497

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

4,050,842

4,050,842

Total restricted assets

4,050,842

4,050,842

22,032,289
(8,725,475)

22,032,289

3 716,661

Total current assets

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Buildings and improvements
Accumu lated depreciation
Contributed right of way easements
Equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Construction in progress

17,947

(8,725,475)
17,947
115,622

115,622

(68,517)

(68,517)
1

Total plant and equipment, net

187 981

14,512,742

47 105

OTHER ASSETS
Economic development loans (net of allowances
for development credits and uncollectibles)
less current maturities
Direct financing leases less current maturities
Land held for future incentives
Buildings held for future incentives
Bond insurance premiums, net
TOTAL ASSETS

187 981

14 559 847

8,582,220

8,582,220

68,162,708

68j62,708

4,660,865

4,660,865

156,403

156 403

81,562,196

Total other assets

1

81,562,196

_q_u63199_ _q_13?,065,616_ _gI9É?9É82_

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding

$

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

$
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$
$

231
231

249 $
249
$

231 249

231,249

AMARILLO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF NET POSTTTON (CONTTNUED)
September 30, 2016 and 2015

2016

Project
fund

Operating

fund

Total

LIABIL¡TIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Vouchers and accounts payable
Due to other funds
Due to federal government
Accrued expenses
Revenue bonds - current maturities
Retainage payable

$

40,144
43,350

$

676,079

716,223
43,350
2,500
37,665
4,680,000

$

2,500
37,665
4,680,000
7 440

Total current liabilities

121 159

7,440

5,366,019

5,487,178

438 520

438,520

438 520

438,520

51,830,000

51,830,000
172,345

51,830,000

52,002,345

57 634,539

57,928,043

11,041,751

1

3,612,322
60,008,253

63,431,410

LIABILITIES PAYABLE FROM
RESTRICTED ASSETS
Accrued interest
Total liabilities payable from restricted assets
OTHER LIABILITIES
Revenue bonds less current maturities
Provision for compensated absences

172,345

345

Total other liabilities

172

Total liabilities

293,504

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Revenue bond debt service/retirement
Unrestricted

47,105

3,423,157

1,088,856
3,612,322

3,470,262 74,662,326 78,132,588
$ 3,763,766 $ 132,296,865 $ 136, 060,631

Total net position
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
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AMARILLO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED)
September 30, 2016 and 2015

2015

Project
fund

Operating

fund
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Receivables:
Accounts receivable
Current maturities of direct financing leases
Accrued interest receivable
Due from State of Texas (sales taxes)
Due from federal government
Due from other funds
Economic development loans - current portion
Other current assets

$

1,599,821

$

1,500,000

5,727,343

Total

$

10,500,000

6,328,459
376,437
1,334,444
6,121

176,596
6,328,459
376,782
1,482,716
6,121
84,104

176,596

345
148,272

84,104

755,832
25,440

755,832
25.440

3,534,578 23,528,636

Totalcurrent assets
RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Total restricted assets
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Buildings and improvements
Accumu lated depreciation
Contributed right of way easements
Equipment
Accumu lated depreciation
Construction in progress

4,044,657

4,044,657

4,044 657

21,145,173

21,145,173

(7,955,051)

(7,955,051)
17,947
124,793
(67,e4s)

17,947

(67,e45)
56 B4B

OTHER ASSETS
Economic development loans (net of allowances
for development credits and uncollectibles)
less current maturities
Direct financing leases less current maturities
Land held for future incentives
Buildings held for future incentives
Bond insurance premiums, net

13,208,069

13, 264,917

7,966,205

175,162

7,966,205
74,943,649
4,351,093
315,632
175 162

,751,741

87 751 741

_91nJu,52e

74,943,649
4,351,093

315,632

Total other assets

87

TOTAL ASSETS

$3, 591,426 $

128,533,103

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding

$

$

343 424

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

$

$

23

27,063,214

4,044,657

124,793

Total plant and equipment, net

7,327,164

9,000,000

$
343,424 $

343,424
343,424

AMARILLO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF NET POSIÏON (CONTINUED)
September 30, 2016 and 2015

2015

Project
fund

Operating

fund

Total

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Vouchers and accounts payable
Maintenance deposits
Due to other funds
Accrued expenses
Revenue bonds - current maturities

$

82 727

11,904
33,772
128,403

Total current liabilities

$

529,437
106,314

$

612,164

000

106,314
96,008
33,772
4,450,000

5,169,855

5,298,258

84,104

LIABILITIES PAYABLE FROM
RESTRICTED ASSETS
Accrued interest

Total liabilities payable from restricted assets
OTHER LIABILITIES
Revenue bonds less current maturities
Provision for compensated absences

467 985

467,985

467,985

467,985

56,510,000

56,510,000
211 741

211 741

Total other liabilities

211 741

56,510,000

56 721 741

Total liabilities

340,144

62,147,840

62,487,984

10,844,136

10,900,984

3,576,672
52,307,879

3,576,672
55,502,313

NET POSITION
Net investment in capitalassets
Restricted for:
Revenue bond debt service/retirement
Unrestricted

56,848
3,194,434

69,979,969
3,251,282 66,728,687
$ 3,591,426 $ 128,876,527 $ 132,467,953

Total net position
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements
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AMARILLO EGONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Years Ended September 30, 2016 and 2015
2016

Project
fund

Operating
fund
OPERAT¡NG REVENUES
Sales taxes
Earnings on investments
lncentive loan and lease interest and discounts

$

1,869,800

$

$

68,890
5,033,668
693,374

18,697,999
79,365
5,033,668
695,174
157,819

6,634
1,706,200

6,634
1,706,200

24,336,965

26,376,859

520,045
3,002,728

520,045
3,002,728

16,828,199

10,475
1,800

Rentals

Total

157,819

Professional service agreement
Miscellaneous revenue
Job credit recoveries

2,039,894

Total operating revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES
Direct development expenses
Grants for qualifying projects
Business retention service contract
Loan and lease incentives and allowances
Lease property carrying expenses
Property leases
Professional services
Other charges
Bond interest and fiscal charges
Lease property depreciation

10,960,693

10,960,693

52,620

52,620
1

297,319

297,319

122,767

122,767
3,827,273

3,827,273
770,424
19,669,552

Total direct development expenses
Supporting services
Salaries, wages and fringe benefits
Advertising and promotion
Other contractual services
Supplies
Other charges

15,683

115,683

770,424
19,669,552

1,003,931

1,003,931

488,015
199,672
7,326

488,015

112,227
9,743

112,227

Total supporting services

1,820,914

1,820,914

Total operating expenses

I

Depreciation

,820,914

4,667,413

4,886,393

325,000
2,941,226

2,941,226

3,266,226

3,266,226

218,980

7,933,639

8,152,619

3,251,282

66,728,687

69,979,969

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR

I 743
21,490,466

NONOPERATTNG REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Miscellaneous revenue
Gain (loss) on disposal of property

Changes in net position

7,326

9,669,552

218,980

Operating income

199,672

1

$ 3,470,262 $ 74,662,326 $

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR

25

325,000

78,132,588

AMARILLO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES rN NET POSITION (CONTINUED)
Years Ended September 30, 2016 and 2015
2015

Project
fund

Operating

fund
OPERATING REVENUES
Sales taxes
Earnings on investments
lncentive loan and lease interest and discounts
Rentals
Professional service agreement
Miscellaneous revenue
Gain (loss) on disposal of property
Federal grants and contracts

$

1,849,423
5,292

$

3,900
176,596

16,644,809

Total

$

27,518
5,278,619
662,879

'176,596
190

190

2,035,401

Total operating revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES
Direct development expenses
Grants for qualifying projects
Business retention service contract
Loan and lease incentives and allowances
Lease property carrying expenses
Property leases
Professional services
Other charges
Bond interest and fiscal charges
Lease property depreciation

7,450

7,450

61,639

61,639

22,682,914

24,718,315

1,770,661
881,540
13,630,075
52,620

1,770,661
881,540
13,630,075
52,620

118,121

118,121

771,685

771,685

142,494
3,847,773
769,007

142,494
3,847,773
769,007

21,983,976

Total direct development expenses
Supporting services
Salaries, wages and fringe benefits
Advertising and promotion
Other contractual services
Supplies
Other charges
Depreciation

18,494,232
32,810
5,278,619
666,779

21,983,976

1,023,223

1,023,223

473,504

473,504

174,591

174,591

6,844

6,844
9,803

132,222
9 803

Total supporting services

1,820,187

1,820,187

Total operating expenses

1,820,187

132,222

215,214

Operating income
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Miscellaneous revenue
Gain (loss) on disposal of property
Contributed capital

21,983,976

163

698,938

914,152
17,947

17,947

(1,530,683)
(4,352,304)

(1,530,683)
(4,352,304)

(5,865,040)

(5,86s,040)

215,214

(5,1 66,1 02)

(4,950,888)

3,036,068

71,894,789

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Changes in net position
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, RESTATED

$ 3,251,282 $

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR

66, 728.687

74,930,857

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements
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69,979,969

AMARILLO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended September 30, 2016 and 2015

2016

fund

Project
fund

Total

$ 1 ,866,619

$ 16,799,562

$ 18,666,181

5,057,530

5,057,530

126,624
8,621
700,008
(7,683,687)
(3,725,804)
(168,303)
(709,305)

136,575
8,621
960,708
(7,683,687)
(3,725,804)
(168,303)
(1,522,127)

Operating
CASH FLOWS FROM OPER,AT¡NG ACTIVITIES
Sales taxes
Principal and interest collections on financing leases
Rentals and maintenance deposits collected
lnterest received on investments
Receipts from federal agencies
Other cash receipts
Cash paid on direct grants for qualifying projects
lnterest expense and fiscal charges
Paid on leases
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services

1,800

1,800
9,951

260,700

(812,822)
(1,043,327)
282

Net cash provided by operating activities

(,043,327\

921

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of property and equipment
Acquisition of land held for future incentives
Principal collection on development loans
Principal paid on revenue bond retirement
Proceeds on sale of assets
Net cash used by capital and related
financing activities

10,405,246

10,688,167

(2,067,657)
(4,908)

(2,067,657)
(4,908)

755,832

755,832

(4,450,000)

(4,450,000)

3,170,680

3,170,680

(2,596,053)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Purchases of investment securities

3,500,000
(4,000,000)

Net cash used by investing activities

(500,000)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

(217

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

,079)

1,599 ,821

(2,596,053)

19,950,000

23,450,000

(24,957,734\

(28,957.734\

(5,007,734)

507 734

2,801,459
9,772,000

2,584,380
11

371 821

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT END OF YEAR

$ 1,382,742

(RESTRTCTED AND UNRESTRTCTED)
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$ 12,573,459

$ 13,956,201

AMARILLO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
Years Ended September 30, 2016 and2015

2016

Project
fund

Operating

fund
RECONCILIATION OF NET REVENUES TO NET CASH
pRovrDED (usED) BY OPERATTNG ACTIVITIES
Net revenues and support over (under) expenses
Adjustments to reconcile net revenues to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization of bond discounUissuance costs
Amortization of premium/discount relating
to investments
Amortization of deferred charge on debt refunding
Loan and lease incentives and allowances
Change in:
Accounts receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Direct financing leases, net of foreclosures
Due from other governmental agencies
Other current assets
Vouchers and accounts payable and
retainage payable
Due to other funds
Due from other funds
Accrued interest payable
Other accrued expenses
Provision for compensated absences
Net cash provided by operating activities

Total

$ 218,980 $ 4,667,413 $ 4,886,393
9,743

770,424
18,759

780,167

57,734
112,175

57,734
112,175
(1,354,443)

18,759

(1,354,443)

18,777

18,777

(524)

23,862

23,338
6,448,022
(23,197)
1,662

6,448,022
(20,016)

(3,181)
1,662

(42,583)

(247,698)
(52,658)
84,104
(29,465)
3,893
(39,396)

(205,1 15)

(84,104)

31,446
84,104

(29,465)
3,893
(39,396)

$

282,921

$

10,405,246

$ 10,688,'167

NONCASH INVESTING, CAP]TAL, AND
FINANCING ACT¡VITIES
Amortization of bond expenses
lnterest expense capitalized
Economic development
note receivable

$

$

(130,e34)

$

31,991

1,706200
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(130,e34)
3'1,991

1,706,200

AMARILLO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
Years Ended September 30, 2016 and 2015

2015

fund

Project
fund

$ 1,849,201

$ 16,642,819

Operating
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Sales taxes
Principal and interest collections on financing leases
Rentals and maintenance deposits collected
lnterest received on investments
Receipts from federal agencies
Other cash receipts
Cash paid on direct grants for qualifying projects
lnterest expense and fiscal charges
Paid on leases
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services

3,900

7,798
134,448

(824,238)
(1,049,533)
121 576

Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of property and equipment
Loans made on direct financing
Principal collection on development loans
Principal paid on revenue bond retirement

Total

$

30,000
662,879
35,545
114,936

18,492,020
30,000
666,779
43,343
114,936
134,501

53

(1,296,084)
(3,752,280)
(170,741)
(3,970,799)
(1,04e,533)

(1,296,084)
(3,752,280)
(170,741)
(3,146,561)

9,120,566

9,242,142

(6,135,858)
(170,000)
100,000
(4,235,000)

(6,135,858)
(170,000)
100,000
(4,235,000)

(10, 440,858)

(10,440,858)

(2, 752.676\

15,000,000
(16,508,027)

17,000,000
(19,260,703)

Net cash used by investing activíties

(7 52,676\

(1,508,027)

(2,260,703)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

(631,100) (2,828,319)

Net cash used by capital and related

financing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Purchases of investment securities

2,000,000

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

2,230,921

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT END OF YEAR

$

(RESTRTCTED AND UNRESTRTCTED)
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12, 600,319

1,599,821 $ 9,772,000

(3,459,419)
14,831,240

$ 11,371,821

AMARILLO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
Years Ended September 30, 2016 and 2015

2015

Project
fund

Operating

fund
RECONCILIATION OF NET REVENUES TO NET CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATTNG ACTTVTïES
Net revenues and support over (under) expenses
Adjustments to reconcile net revenues to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization of bond discounUissuance costs
Amortization of premium/discount relating
to investments
Amortization of deferred charge on debt refunding
Loan and lease incentives and allowances
(Gain) loss on sale of assets
Change in:
Accounts receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Direct financing leases, net of foreclosures
Economic development loans, net of foreclosures
Due from other governmental agencies
Other current assets
Vouchers and accounts payable and
retainage payable
Due to other funds
Due from other funds
Accrued interest payable
Other accrued expenses
Provision for compensated absences
Net cash provided by operating activities

NONCASH ]NVESTING, CAPITAL, AND
F¡NANCING ACTIVITIES
Amortization of bond expenses
I nterest expense capitalized

Total

$ 215,214 $ 698,938 $
9,803

2,676

769,007

778,810

17,865

17,865

8,027
105,300

10,703
105,300

8,912,496

8,912,496

(7,450)

(7,450)

1,764,783
3,658,186
(4,847,892)
51,307

41,764
1,764,613
3,658,186
(4,847,892)
51,085

250,000

257,918

41,764

(170)

(222)
7,918

(2,313,832)
95,957
(84,051)
(27,672)
(59,500)
(26,310)

(2,316,486)
84,104

2,654
11,853

(84,104)

53

(27,672)
(59,500)
(26,310)

$

$

121

576 $9,120,566

$

(122,736)

$9,242,142

$

222,077

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
30

914,152

(122,736)
222,077

AMARILLO ECONOM¡C DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2016 and 2015
NOTE

I . SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLIGIES

Financial Reporting Entity
The Amarillo Economic Development Corporation (AEDC) is a governmental organization created
in 1990 under provisions of the Development Corporation Act of the State of Texas, funded by a
1l2-percent sales tax. ln November 1989, Amarillo became the second city in Texas to approve
the economic development sales tax, which was newly authorized by state statute.

AEDC is governed by a five-member Board of Directors appointed by the City Council of the City
of Amarillo (the City). AEDC's annual operating budget, as well as projects undertaken by it, is
subject to approval by the City Council. Because of this oversight responsibility, AEDC is
considered to be a component unit of the City, and in accordance with Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No 61 , The Financial Reporting Entity, its financial affairs
are included in the City's comprehensive annualfinancial report as a discretely-presented entity.
Based on the nature of its major revenues, it is included in the City's governmental funds
presentation.
AEDC carries out its development activities in a variety of ways, including leasing facilities and
making loans or grants to qualifying enterprises, as well as supporting research and promotional
activities in the Amarillo area.

Basis of Presentation
Deferred Outflows/l nflows of Resources

ln addition to assets, the statement of financial position includes a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) untilthen. AEDC only has one item
that qualifies for reporting in this category. lt is the deferred charge on refunding reported in the
statement of net position. A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the
carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized
over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.
ln addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
reso.trces, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. AEDC does not have any
deferred inflows of resources.
Net Position

AEDC follows the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34
Basic Financial Statements - and Managemenf's Drscussion and Analysis - for State and Local
Governmenfs. GASB Statement No. 34 established a financial reporting modelfor state and local
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF StGNtF|CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Presentation (Continued)
governments that included the addition of management's discussion and analysis, governmentwide financial statements, required supplementary information and the elimination of the effects
of internal service activities and the use of account groups. lt requires the classification of net
position into three components - invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and
unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows:
a

a

-

Net investment in capital assefs This component of net position consists of capital
assets, including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced
by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. lf there are
significant unspent related debt proceeds at year end, the portion of the debt attributable
to the unspent proceeds are not included in the calculation of invested in capital assets,
net of related debt. Rather, that portion of the debt is included in the same net position
component as the unspent proceeds.
Restricted net position

- This component

of net position consists of constraints placed on

net asset use through external constraints imposed by creditors (i.e., through debt
covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or
constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
a

Unrestricted net position - This component of net position consists of net assets that do
not meet the definition of "restricted" or "invested in capital assets, net related debt."

As a management control device, the Board has adopted a policy of dividing the accounts into
two self-balancing funds, each of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. The
Operating Fund accounts for general and administrative expenses, and the Board has allocated
10% of the sales tax revenues to fund such expenses. The Project Fund accounts for direct
funding of development projects, expenses directly related to specific development projects, and
grants to selected governmental or nonprofit organizations in support of those entities' qualifying
activities.

When restricted resources are available for use, it is AEDC's policy to use restricted resources
first, followed by unrestricted amounts.

Basis of Accounting
Because it has been AEDC's intent to affect a substantial portíon of its economic incentives by
leasing and revolving loan activities, periodic determination of revenues, expenses, and net
income has been deemed appropriate. Consequently, AEDC has adopted accounting policies
similar to those of private business enterprises and proprietary funds of governmental entities.
Revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized when incurred.
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Basis of Accounting (Continued)
Depreciation is recorded as a charge against operations. Economic development grants and
incentives are accounted for as expenses, and sales taxes used to fund such activities are
accounted for as revenues for both its Operating Fund and Project Fund. The measurement focus
applied is the flow of economic resources. AEDC applies all applicable GASB pronouncements.
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash Equivalents
Holdings of money market funds and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash, and have original maturities of three months or less which
present an insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates, are
considered to be cash equivalents.
lnvestments and lnvestment lncome

AEDC follows GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Ceftain
lnvestments and for External lnvestment Pools. Under GASB Statement No. 31, investments
generally are reported at fair value, and all investment income, including changes in the fair value
of investments, is recognized as revenue in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in
net position.
Securities traded on a national exchange are valued at the last reported sales price. lnvestments
that do not have an estaþlished market are reported at estimated fair value. lnvestments,
excluding assets whose use is limited, have been classified as current assets in the
accompanying basic financial statements. The specific identification method of determining cost
is used to calculate realized gain or loss. Donated investments are recorded at fair value at the
date of receipt.

Receivables
Development loan receivables are reported at their stated principal amounts, reduced by the
estimated effect of potential interest waivers to be granted for job creation accomplishments, as
well as by an allowance for uncollectible amounts. Direct financing leases are reported at the
lower of AEDC's investment in the property or the present value of the future minimum lease
payments to be received plus the estimated residual value of the leased property. lncome from
finance leases is credited to income based on a constant periodic rate of return on the net
investment in the lease.
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I - SUMMARY OF S|GNIF|CANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Restricted Assets and Liabilities

Assets legally restricted by bond covenants and liabilities payable from those assets are
separated in the financial statements, and net balances, if any, are reported as reserved net
position.

Plant and Equipment
All fixed assets are stated at historical cost or at fair market value when received, if contributed
Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method and
is charged as an expense against operations. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

buildings

Hangars and other
Office furnishings and

equipment

30 years
10 to 30 years

Under financial accounting standards, the net effect of interest expense and related interest
revenue incurred during construction of assets is capitalized. Capitalized interest during 2016
and 2015 was $31,991 and $222,077, respectively.

Operating and Nonoperating Revenues
AEDC distinguishes operating revenue and expense from nonoperating items. Sales tax revenue
and earnings on investments are classified as operating revenue,

Sales Taxes
Sales taxes are recognized as revenues in the month in which sales tax returns are filed with the
State Comptroller. Such returns generally report taxes that were collected by the remitter in the
immediately preceding month.

Professional Service Agreement
AEDC entered into a Professional Service Agreement with a Texas Nonprofit Corporation in
January 2011 in which AEDC will provide various administrative and office services for the
nonprofit corporation. The nonprofit corporation will reimburse AEDC on an annual basis for all
expenses paid, including employee salaries. The total amount paid to AEDC cannot exceed a
budgeted amount of $165,000 and $176,596 for the years ended 2016 and 2015, respectively.
The amount of professional service agreement revenue recognized by AEDC during 2016 and
2015 was $157,819 and $176,596, respectively.
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I - SUMMARY OF STGNIF¡CANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Grants
Grants are recorded as expenses and liabilities at the time recipients are entitled to them, which
normally occurs when the funds are approved by the City Council of the City. Grants subject to
significant performance criteria are recorded when the funds are disbursed or the criteria satisfied,
whichever is earlier. Because usually no objective basis would be available for valuation of
refunds owed by grantees for failure to satisfy performance criteria, AEDC's policy is to defer
recognition of grant forfeitures as income until refunds are collected in cash or by negotiable
notes.

Advertising
AEDC expenses the production costs of advertising at the date at which it incurs a liability with
respect to such costs. Similarly, the costs of communicating advertisements that have been
produced are recognized as expenses in full when performance has occurred.

lncome Taxes
Because AEDC is a component unit of the City and its revenues are related to its public purpose,
any net revenues of AEDC are exempt from federal income tax under Section 115 of the lnternal
Revenue Code.

Reclassifications
Certain amounts have been reclassified in the September 30,2015 financial statements to agree
to the 2016 presentation.

NOTE

2.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The City serves as AEDC's fiscal agent. Under the arrangement, AEDC's deposits

and

investments are accounted for by the City as an agency fund, and its uninvested cash is held in

the City's depository in the City's name as agent for AEDC. AEDC's cash in banks was
$2,913,609 and $6,019,162, at September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. As provided for
under the laws of the State of Texas, all of the City's deposits, including the deposits of its agency
funds, to the extent not insured by Federal depository insurance, are secured by a bond.

lnvestments
All investments are administered by the City's management under terms of an investment policy
and strategy that is updated to conform to the Texas Public Funds lnvestment Act as last
amended. The preservation of capital is AEDC's most important investment objective. Other
objectives include providing liquidity and maximizing earnings within the constraints of the other
objectives.
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lnvestments (Continued)
UnderAEDC's policies, the maximum dollarweighted-average maturity of the investment portfolio
may not exceed one year, and 80% of the portfolio must be in investments with maturities of two
years or less. At September 30, 2016, the weighted average maturity of AEDC's investment
securities was .34 years.
AEDC will only invest in the following types of securities:
a

Bank money market funds and other interest-bearing accounts at AEDC's authorized
depository.
Direct obligations of the United States government.

a

a

Obligations of agencies and instrumentalities of the United States, limited to 7O% of the
portfolio reduced by the percentage invested in commercial paper.
Highly rated investment pools and no-load money market mutualfunds.

Taxable municipal bonds, limited lo

1Qo/o

of the portfolio.

For bond proceeds only, fully collateralized, flexible, repurchase agreements.

lnterest Rate Risk: ln accordance with the lnvestment Policy, AEDC manages its exposure to
declines in fair values by limiting the weighted average maturity of the investment portfolio to less
than twelve months and that 80% of the portfolio must be in investments with maturities of two
years or less. Also, as stated in the lnvestment Policy, AEDC will not borrow funds using
investment securities as collateral; will not take a position in a security for speculation, and AEDC
uses a buy-and-hold strategy for most investments.
Credit Risk: AEDC invests in direct obligations of the United States and obligations of agencies
and instrumentalities of the United States. These investments are AAA-rated (or equivalent by a
nationally recognized credit rating agency). The Policy also allows for the investment in taxable
municipal securities rated not less than AA (or equivalent). AEDC does not have any taxable
municipal security investments at this time. AEDC does invest in a treasury only no-load money
market mutual fund that is continuously rated AAA or AAAm (or equivalent).
Concentration of Credit Risk: As stated in the lnvestment Policy, AEDC will diversify investments
when purchasing agency securities or commercial paper to avoid a concentration in one agency
or company.
Custodial Credit Risk: Deposits: ln the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the government's deposits may not be returned to it. AEDC has a tri-party agreement with
the depository and a third-party financial institution (Federal Reserve Bank) that holds pledged
collateral in a separate custody account for the benefit of AEDC. All AEDC deposits are fully
collateralized by these pledged securities.
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I

nvestments (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk: lnvestments: For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty, the government will not be able to recover the value of its investments
or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. AEDC contracts with an
outside financial institution as custodian for all investment transactions, and all investment
transactions are made on a delivery-versus-payment method with the outside custodian. The
securities are held in AEDC's name in a separate account. Access to this account is limited to
the approved lnvestment Officers.

A summary of investment securities of AEDC at September 30, 2016 and the corresponding
weighted average maturity is shown below.

Fair
Value
$

Money market mutual funds
CDARS

Total investments at fair value
Classified as cash and cash equivalents
for financial reporting

Weighted Average
Maturitv (Years)

11,044,128
15,950,000

34

26,994,128

34

n|.044.128\

s

Net investments

15.950.000

.34

A summary of investment securities of AEDC at September 30, 2015 and the corresponding
weighted average maturity is shown below.
Fair
Value

Money market mutual funds
CDARS
Total investments at fair value
Classified as cash and cash equivalents
for financial reporting

$

Net investments

$ 10 500.000

NOTE

3.

5,532,913
10.500.000
16,032,913

Weighted Average
Maturitv (Years)
0.31
0.31

(5.532.913)
_0-3_1

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

AEDC adopted GASB Statement No. 72, FairValue Measurements and Applications, as guidance
on fair value measurements. The standard established a three-level valuation hierarchy for
disclosure based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the
measurement date. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for
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identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs (Level 3 measurements). An asset's fair value measurement level within the hierarchy is
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the valuation.
The three levels are defined as follows:

.

Level 1 - Quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

a

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full
term of the assets or liabilities.

a

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that
are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

-

AEDC uses appropriate valuation techniques based on the available inputs to measure the fair
value of its investments. When available, AEDC measures fairvalue using Level 1 inputs because
they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value. Level 3 inputs were used only
when Level 1 or Level 2 inputs were not available.

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis
Fair Value Measurements Usinq:

Quoted Prices
ln Active
Markets for

ldentical Assets

(Levell)

Fair Value

Significant
Other
Observable
lnputs

Significant
Unobservable
lnputs

(Level 2)

(Level 3)

September 30. 2016:
CDARS

$ 15,950,000

$

$ 15,950,000

$

Total

$ 15.950.000

$

$ 15.950.000

$

CDARS

$ 10,500,000

$

$ 10,500,000

$

Total

$ 10.500.000

$

$ 10.500.000

$

September 30, 2015:

For the valuation of CDARS at September 30, 2016 and 2015, AEDC used significant other
observable inputs as of the valuation date, particularly dealer market price for comparable
investments as of the valuation date (Level 2).

A summary of investments classified according to any restrictions at September 30,2016 and
2015 is as follows:
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Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis (Continued)

2016
investments
Total investments

2015

$ 15.950,000 $ 10,500.000

Unrestricted

ü15*950-000 $l-0é00*000

There were no fair values of assets and liabilities measured on a nonrecurring basis at September

30,2016 and2015.
NOTE

4.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT LOANS

As one type of economic development project, AEDC has made a number of loans to industrial
enterprises under arrangements that waive up to 100% of the stated interest on such loans, if job
creation requirements are met. Because AEDC's expectation is that the job creation
accomplishments will be at the maximum projected amounts, resulting in full waiver of the stated
interest, the maximum potential allowances are recognized as development expenses in the
periods in which the loans are made.

A provision has been made for uncollectible loans, including amounts related to the individual
credits based on management's analysis, as well as a provision for unidentified risks.
An analysis of loans and the related valuation allowances is as follows:
2015

2016
Principal balances
Allowance for uncollectible loans

$ 9,672,405

Loans, net of allowances

s 9.672.405 $ 8.722.037

$ 8,722,037

Loans are further analyzed as follows

2015

2016
Current maturities
Noncurrent maturities

$ 1 ,090,185

Loans, net of allowances

$

I
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Loan activity during the period is summarized as follows:

2016

2015

Principal balances at beginning of year
lncrease for new loans
Adjustment for cash payments and credits

$ 8,722,037
1,706200

$ 7,584,105
170,000
967,932

Principal balances at end of year

$ 9.672.405 $ 8.722.037

í55.832)

Accrued interest receivable on the loans is $338,037 and $370,626 at September 30,2016 and
2015, respectively.
AEDC's notes receivable consist of three instruments at September 30, 2016:

1

Principal

Discount

$ 10,000,000

$ (2,160,045)

2
3

1

170,000
706 200

(43,750)

Unamortized
Net

lnterest

$

5.749o/o
5.250o/o

7,939,955
126,250
1.706.200

Rate

3.500%

$ 11.876.200 S (2.203.795) S 9.672.405
NOTE

5.

DIREGT FINANC¡NG LEASES

ln August 1998, Bell Helicopter, the world's leading producer of helicopters, announced its
selection of Amarillo as the site for its new tiltrotor helicopter plant, based partly on incentives
offered by AEDC. The incentive package includes manufacturing facilities financed by sales-taxbacked bonds up to a total amount of $34 million, industrial revenue bonds up to a total amount
of $8 million, cash of up to $5 million for site acquisition and employee training and relocation.
Bell's obligations under a lease agreement are sufficient to service the construction debt, but if
job creation goals are met, the resulting incentive credits could fully discharge Bell's payment
obligations. As of September 30, 2016, the total funding capacity under the location incentive
agreement is approximately $120 million.
ln the 1999 fiscal year, approximately 65 acres of land adjacent to the City's airport were acquired

for Phase I of this project, and construction of a hangar and an aircraft assembly building
commenced. The first building was completed in May 1999, and the second building was
completed in March 2000. The rental term for this phase of the project is 20 years, coinciding
with the term of sales tax revenue bonds in face amount of $23,430,000 sold in order to fund the
construction. The rental amount is to be the levelized debt service on the bonds. ïhe resulting
annual rentals in the amount of $2,163,503, as noted above, could be fully waived if job creation
goals are met.
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At September 30, 2016 and 2015, AEDC's net investment in this lease was $4,531,283

and

$6, 368,953, respectively.

ln fiscal year 2005, an expansion to the aircraft assembly building was completed for a total cost
of $10,570,000. TheleaseforthisprojectcommencedonNovember2,2004. Therental term
for this project is 20 years, beginning on the date the lease commenced. The resulting annual
rentals in the amount of $528,500 could be fully waived if job creation goals are met. At
September 30, 2016 and2015, AEDC's net investment in this lease, less discount for jobs credits,
was $3,378,509 and $3,693,953, respectively.

ln fiscal year 2006, an expansion to the facility was completed for a total cost of $14,234,368.
The lease for this project commenced on January 1, 2006. The rental term for this project is 20
years, beginning on the date the lease commenced. The resulting annual rentals in the amount
of $71 1,718 could be fully waived if job creation goals are met. At September 30, 2016 and 2015,
AEDC's net investment in this lease, less discount for jobs credits, was $5,058,730 and
$5,474,033, respectively.
ln fiscal year 2006, a project was completed for a total cost of $15,028,921 . The lease for this
project commenced on January 1,2006. The rental term forthis project is 20 years, beginning
on the date the lease commenced. The resulting annual rentals in the amount of $751,446 could
be fully waived if job creation goals are met. At September 30, 2016 and 2015, AEDC's net
investment in this lease, less discount for jobs credits, was $5,308,704 and $5,740,829,
respectively.
ln fiscal year 2009, a project was completed for a total cost of $22,242,454. The lease for this
project commences on January 1,2010. The rental term forthis project is 20 years, beginning
on the date the lease commences. The resulting annual rentals in the amount of $1,884,509
could be fully waived if job creation goals are met. At September 30, 2016 and 2015, AEDC's net
investment in this lease, less discount for jobs credits, was $18,523,654 and $19,369,637,
respectively.

ln fiscal year 2011, a project was completed for a total cost of $31,749,325. The lease for this
project commenced on June 14,2011. The rental term for this project is 20 years, beginning on
the date the lease commences. The resulting annual rentals in the amount of $2,811,214 could
be fully waived if job creation goals are met. At September 30, 2016 and 2015, AEDC's net
investment in this lease, less discount for job credits, was $26,950,577 and $27,997,938,
respectively.

At the end of any of the above leases, Bell Helicopter has the option to purchase the related
buildings and underlying land associated with the lease, for $1.
Additionally, AEDC has acquired another 98.6 acres of adjacent land for future expansion at a
total cost of $782,540. ln accordance with the terms of the incentive package, this land together
with any improvements thereon will be subject to a purchase option at a nominal amount after
redemption of any bonds issued for related construction.
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ln fiscal year 2009, a project was completed for a tenant in which, subject to job creation targets,
the tenant has the option to acquire the property in 2029, for $1, At September 30, 2016 and
2015, AEDC's net investment in this lease, less discount for jobs credits, was $5,81 1,699 and
$6,1 06,7 27, respectively.

ln 1997, AEDC completed acquisition and renovation of a property for an industrial tenant in
which, subject to job creation targets, the tenant has the option to acquire the property in 2006,
and every third year thereafter, for an amount equal to AEDC's initial investment reduced by
subsequent rentals. During 2011, AEDC amended the agreement with this tenant and advanced
additional funds to the company for improvements. The additional amount advanced was
approximately $t 66,000. The terms of the loan were changed to extend payments on the loan
through August 2020 and allow for three additional three-year successive terms to acquire the
property as previously described. At September 30, 2016 and 2015, AEDC's net investment on
this lease was $118,905 and $148,905, respectively.
ln fiscal year 2015, a project was completed for a tenant in which a building and surrounding
improvements in the Centerport complex were constructed for a total cost of $9,607,823 with
related land valued at $390,240. As part of a location incentive agreement between the tenant
and AEDC, the tenant was given a $4,500,000 loan incentive credit, making the total lease amount

$5,498,063. As part this transaction, the tenant transferred ownership of a building and land in
downtown Amarillo to the City and they subsequently obtained an appraisal that valued the
downtown property at $5,020,000. The lease for this project commenced on Marcn 31,2015.
The term for this project is four years, beginning on the date the lease commenced. The resulting
annual rentals in the amount of $1 ,374,516 could be full waived if job creation goals are met and
if the tenant does not cease operations in the facility during the four-year contract term. At
September 30,2016 and 2015, AEDC's net investment in this lease, less discount for job credits,
was $3,932,235 and $5,161,343, respectively.
ln fiscal year 2015, approximately 48 acres of land in AEDC's Centerport complex was deeded to

a wind tower manufacturer. The lease for this project commences on November 15, 2021. Ihe
rental term for this project is seven years, beginning on the date that the lease commences. The
resulting annual rental of $274,286 could be fully or partially waived if job creation goals are met.
At September 30, 2016 and 2015, AEDC's net investment in this lease, less discount for job
credits, is $1,209,790.
Future noncancelable commitments of the tenants under these arrangements are as follows:

Year ending
September 30.
2017
2018
2019
2020

Other

Bell Helicopter

$

42

8,850,890
8,850,890
7,267,728
6,700,603

$

2,034,516
2,034,516
2,034,516
658,905
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Year ending
September 30.

Bell Helicopter

2021
Future years

Other

6,687,387
52,554.922

630,000
6,960.000

$ 90.912.420 $

Totals

14.352.453

As described above, the Bell Helicopter and other leases are subject to job creation credits that
may result in a full waiver of the lease payments.
Direct financing leases are further analyzed as follows:

2016

2015

Current maturities
Noncurrent maturities

$

Total investment in direct financing leases

s_14.82Aß86 $_ß1-U2J08

NOTE

6.

6,661,378

$

68 162 708

6,328,459
74,943,649

LOAN AND LEASE INCENTIVES AND ALLOWANCES

Loan incentives and allowances for the years ended September 30, 2016 and 2Q15, were in the
amount of $10,960,693 and $13,630,075, respectively. Loan incentives consist of 1) interest on
loans and direct financing leases, which had been waived during the first year of the project, and
2) principal and interest on direct financing leases waived during the lease term. These waivers
are dependent upon reaching job creation targets. Allowances are made for potential losses on
loans based on analyses of the individual credits as well as on AEDC's historical loss experience
from inception of AEDC's incentive loan activities.

NOTET-CAPITALASSETS
Capital asset activity for the years ended September 30, 2016 is as follows.
Balance
September 30,

Balance
October 1,
2015

Operating Fund:
Building and equipment
Vehicles
Total cost

$

96,904

Additions
$

Deductions
$

(e,171) $

27,889
124.793

43

2016

87,733
27 889

(9.171)

115,622
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Balance
October 1,
2015

Less: Accumulated depreciation
Building and equipment
Vehicles

Additions

(55,383)

Total accumulated
depreciation
Net capital assets for
Operating Fund
Project Fund:
Building and equipment
Construction in process
Right of way easements

Deductions

(4,165)
(5,s78)

9,171

flz,562)
(67,94s)

(9,743\

9,171

56,848

(9.743\

21,145,173

Balance
September 30,
2016
50,377

18.140
(68.517)
47

-

887,1 1 6
2,075,097

(997,1

16)

22,032,289
1,187 ,981
17 947

17.947

21,163,120 2,962,213

Total cost

Less: Accumulated depreciation
Building and equipment
Net capital assets for
Project Fund

í.955.051)
13,208,069

(887,1

16)

23,238,217

070.424\
2 191

ß,725.475\

789

(887,116)

14,512,742

3-re4.91L 5_21e-04Ê $___J88Lt1-6) $L4*559-AlZ

Total net capital assets

Capital asset activity for the years ended September 30,2015 is as follows:
Balance
October 1,

2014

Additions

Balance
September 30,

Deductions

2015

(restated)

Operating Fund:
Building and equipment
Vehicles
Total cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Building and equipment
Vehicles

Total accumulated
depreciation
Net capital assets for
Operating Fund

$

98,088

$

$

(1,184)

$

27.889
125 977

(52,342)
(6,e84)

(4,225)
(5.578)

(59.326)

(9,803)

66,651

44

(9.803)

96,904
27 889

(1,184)

124.793

1,184

(55,383)

n2.562\

1,184

(67,945\
56,848
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Balance
October l,
2014
(restated)

Project Fund:
Building and equipment
Construction in process
Right of way easements

Total cost

Less: Accumulated depreciation
Building and equipment
Net capital assets for
Project Fund
Total net capital assets

15,163,481
12,523,580

Balance
September 30,
2015

Additions

Deductions

17,602,189
5,514,986
17,947

(11,620,497) 21,145,173

(18,038,566)

i_,

,no,

27,697,061 23,135,122 (29,659,063) 21,163,120

ft.211.998\

ü69.007)

20,475.063 22 366

115

$Æþ41JtA 5223&312

25,954

(7,955,051)

09)

13.208.069

(29.633.1

$J29-633J_09)

$l3¿el-glz

Depreciation expense for the years ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 was $780,167 and
$778,8 1 0, respectively.

The carrying amount of buildings held for future incentives for the years ended September 30,
2016 and 2015 equaled $0 and $31 5,632, respectively.
AEDC incurred interest expense of $3,724,831 and $3,943,185 as of September 30, 2016 and
2015, respectively. They capitalized interest costs of $31,991 and $222,077 for September 30,
2016 and 2015, respectively.
NOTE 8 - OPERATING LEASE ACTIVITIES

AEDC leased land and a warehouse from the City during the years ended September 30, 2016
and 2Q15. This warehouse and land were then subleased to an unrelated third party under
noncancelable operating leases.
During the years ended September 30,2016 and 2015, AEDC recognized rental income in the
amount of $146,790 and $141,351, respectively, with respect to this property and under its own
lease obligations, AEDC paid the City $115,683 and $118,121 forthe fiscal years ended 2016
and 201 5, respectively.
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- OPERAT|NG LEASE ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

Future noncancelable commitments under the land and warehouse lease are as follows

Gommitments of AEDC
to Citv of Amarillo

Year Ending
September 30.

$

2017

Total minimum future lease

commitments

93,862

$--13-862

to unrelated third parties under
noncancelable operating leases. The carrying amount of assets held for lease at September 30,
2016 and 2015 was approximately $4,500,000. AEDC received approximately $548,000 on these
leases.

AEDC also leases certain office and warehouse space

The following is a schedule by years of minimum future rentals to be received from

all

noncancelable operating leases as of September 30, 2016:

Year Ending
September 30.
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
Thereafter

Total minimum future rental receipts

$

661,299
537,406
537,406
506,367
490,936
1.447 ,764

s

4.181.178

NOTE 9 . GRANTS FOR QUALIFYING PROJECTS

Grants for qualifying projects and business retention service contracts for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2016, in the amount of $3,522,773, includes several expansion grants in the
amount of $1,550,972 to commercial entities, $871 ,801 to institutions of higher learning for local
expansion and program development, $250,000 to nonprofits for marketing grants and $850,000
paid for small business incentives. Grants for qualifying projects and business retention service
contracts for the fiscal year ended September 30,2015, in the amount of $2,652,201, includes
several expansion grants in the amount of $1,317,730 to commercial entities, $434,471 to
institutions of higher learning for local expansion and program development, $50,000 to nonprofits
for marketing grants and $850,000 paid for small business incentives.
During the year ended September 30,2007 , AEDC granted a manufacturing company $2,000,000
as part of a location incentive agreement. The terms of the agreement state that, if certain criteria
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are not met by the manufacturing company during the period of May 21,2012 to May 21,2Q16,
the manufacturing company may be subject to reimburse AEDC all or a portion of the original
grant amount. Any amounts payable by the manufacturing company to AEDC under the
agreement can take the form of a loan bearing a floating interest rate adjusted annually to the
current Wall Street Journal prime rate. As of September 30, 2016 AEDC has recorded a
receivable in the amount of $1,706,200 from the Company. Subsequent to year end AEDC has
yet to receive any payments on this loan. However, an allowance has not been recorded as of
September 30, 2016. AEDC's management is currently working with the management of the
manufacturing company to collect the loan and negotiate the agreement. AEDC has determined
the value of the collateral, which consists of trailers leased to other parties to be sufficient
coverage on this note if no payments are received.
NOTE

IO,

RESTRICTED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ln accordance with covenants related to AEDC's 1998 sales tax revenue bonds and the 2007
taxable sales tax revenue refunding and improvement bonds, the following specialfunds must be
maintained:

(a)

A debt service fund, which must include the following accounts:

(l)
(il)
(b)

An interest account, to which sales tax revenues are to be deposited in amounts
sufficient to accumulate, on a ratable basis, the amounts required for the next
installments due.
A principal installment account, to which sales tax revenues are to be deposited
in amounts sufficient to accumulate, on a ratable basis, the amounts required
for the next installments due.

An economic development fund and a general operating fund, to which the balance of
sales tax revenues may be deposited after satisfying the above requirements.

The status of the debt service fund at September 30, 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

Assets

L¡

ities

Net Position

September 30, 2016:

692,231

$

lnterest and principal installment account
Current bond maturities and accrued interest

$

Net position restricted for debt service

s 692.231 $ t438.520) S

$

(438,520)

692,231
Ø38,520)
253.711

September 30. 2015:
lnterest and principal installment account
Current bond maturities and accrued interest

$ 686,046

Net position restricted for debt service

$s86p40

$

(467,985)
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$ (467.985)

$

686,046
(467,985)
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The net position of these funds is reported in the restricted net position of $3,612,322 as of
September 30, 2016 and restricted net position of $3,576,672 as of September 30, 2015.
NOTE

1I . REVENUE BONDS

ln December 1998, AEDC issued its Taxable Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1998, dated
October 15, 1998, in theface amount of $23,430,000, due in annual principal amounts ranging
from $670,000 on August 15, 2000, up to $1 ,420,000 on August 15, 2013, plus a maturity of term
bonds of $8,685,000 on August 15,2Q18. lnterest rates on the bonds ranged from 6.64% to
6.88%. ln connection with this debt, AEDC incurred original issue discount and bond issuance
costs of $430,000, which amount was being amortized over the term of the bonds on a weightedaverage basis.

ln December 2QQ7, AEDC issued its Taxable Sales Tax Revenue Refunding and lmprovement
Bonds, Series 2007, dated November 20,2007, in face amount of $48,915,000. The 2007 issue
refunded the above-mentioned 1998 bond issue and provided an additional $30 million for new
projects. The 2007 Series has annual principal amounts ranging from $1,620,000 to $3,365,000.
Annual debt requirements range from approximately $4,753,000 to $2,789,000 through September 30, 2027. lnterest rates on the outstanding bonds range from 5.30% lo 6.250/o. AEDC
reserves the right to redeem the bonds having stated maturities on and after August 15, 2018, in
whole or in part in principal of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, on August 15,2017, or any
date thereafter, at the par value thereof plus accrued interest to the date of redemption.
At the time of the refunding there was $16,330,000 of outstanding Taxable Sales Tax Revenue
Bonds, Series 1998. The reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by
approximately $1,031,000. This amount is being netted against the new debt and amortized over
the remaining life of the refunded debt, which is shorter than the life of the debt issued. The
refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next 11 years by
approximately $1,650,000 and resulted in an economic benefit of approximately $620,000. For
financial reporting purposes, the debt has been considered defeased and, therefore, removed as
a liability from AEDC's financial statements.

ln December 2009, AEDC issued Taxable Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2009 dated

De-

cember 15, 2OOg in the face amount of $38,830,000. The 2009 series provided approximately
$31 million for Bell Helicopter expansions and $5 million for building construction for a new
manufacturing company. The 2009 series has annual principal amounts ranging from $1,480,000
to $3,240,000. Annual debt service requirements range from approximately $3,449,000 to
$3,453,000 through August 15, 2030. lnterest rates on the outstanding bonds range from 5.143%
lo 6.529%. AEDC reserves the right to redeem the bonds having stated maturities on and after
August 15,2020 in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof
on August 15,2019 or any date thereof, at the par value thereof plus accrued interest to the date
of redemption. The Term Bonds maturing on August 15,2019 and August 15, 2030 are subject
to mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity at the redemption price of par and accrued
interest as scheduled.

48

AMARILLO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2016 and 2015
NOTE

fl

- REVENUE BONDS (CONTINUED)

The annual requirements to amortize both bond issues outstanding as of September 30, 2016,
are as follows:

FiscalYear Ended
September 30.
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022 -2026
2027 -2031

Principal
$

4,680,000
4,920,000
3,255,000
3,440,000
3,660,000
22,115,000
14.440,000

Total

lnterest
$

3,523,699
3,277,983
2,987,697
2,802,359
2,582,560
9,091,842
2,153,448

$

8,203,699
8,197,983
6,242,697
6,242,359
6,242,560
31,206,842
16,593,448

s 56.510.000 $ 26.419.588 $ 82.929.588
The following is a summary of changes in general longterm debt for the years ended September
30:

2016

$ 60,960,000 $ 65,195,000

Principal outstanding, beginning of year

(4.450.000) (4.235,000)

Redemptions during year

$ 56.510.000 s 60.960.000

Principal outstanding, end of year
NOTE

I2.

2015

BOND INSURANCE

As further security for the 2007 Series Revenue Bonds, an insurance policy was acquired which
unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees the full and complete payment of bond principal and
interest as it becomes due. Currently, the claims paying ability of the insurer is rated "Al" by
Moody's lnvestors Service, lnc., and'AA-" by Standard & Poor's Ratings Services.
NOTE 13 . COMPENSATED ABSENCES

ln November,2015 the AEDC amended the vacation and sick leave policy. All employees are
entitled to annual leave of two to five weeks, depending on years of service and twelve days of
sick leave per year. There is no limit on accumulation of annual leave, however, the payout of
accumulated annual leave upon termination is limited to 520 hours with any overages being used
to extend the termination date upon leaving AEDC. Sick leave is not paid out upon termination if
there is five years or less of continuous service. lf the employee has over five years of continuous
service then the payment of sick leave is up lo 720 hours upon termination with any overage
converted by formula and transferred into a Health Reimbursement Account (HRA).
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Prior to November, 2015 AEDC followed the City's vacation and sick leave policy, which specified
that all employees are entitled to annual leave of two to five weeks, depending on years of service,
and 12 days sick leave per year. Employees may carry over up to 65 days of annual leave to
future years. For employees hired prior to October 1,2007, the policy was the same as was
implemented on November, 2015. For employees hired after October 1,2007, sick leave was
capped at 480 hours and annual leave was capped at240 hours.

AEDC's accumulated liability for benefits vested under these plans was 9172,345 and $211,741
at September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
NOTE

14. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN

AEDC maintains a non-contributory money purchase pension plan, a defined contribution plan,
for its employees, which is designed to meet the requirements of lnternal Revenue Code aü@).
The authority for establishing and amending this Plan and the related contributions rests with the
Board of Directors. Employees with at least one year of service retroactively participate in the
plan, effective with their date of hire, and benefits vest immediately. The current contribution rate
is 10% of salaries, and AEDC's policy is to fund costs as they accrue. A local banking institution
serves as trustee. The cost of this plan for the years ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 was
$7 4,528 and $69,093, respectively.
NOTE

I5 . OCCUPANCY

AEDC signed an amendment to their original operating lease agreement for office space in July
2011. The new lease is through November 30,2017. Rent expense was approximately $54,607
for the years ended September 30, 2016 and 2015.

The following is

a schedule by years of

minimum future rentals

to be paid from

such

noncancelable operating leases as of September 30, 2016:

Year Ending
September 30.

NOTE

2017
2018

$

Total minimum future rentals

Ll0;1-68

48,144

I,024

I6 . TRANSACTIONS WITH MUNICIPALITY

The City serves as fiscal agent for AEDC, furnishing accounting, investment management, and
data processing services under a contract which provides that the City will be reimbursed for its
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cost of providing the services. Fees charged under this agreement were $33,293 and $44,033
for the years ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
NOTE I7 . COMMITMENTS

At September 30, 2016, AEDC had outstanding commitments to make grants or extend credit to
qualifying enterprises in the amount of approximately $36,000,000. ln April 2014, AEDC
purchased a building for $3,100,000. After the purchase, and as part of the purchase agreement,
AEDC received approximately $170,000 in insurance proceeds from the seller for an insurance
claim on damage to the roof. The insurance proceeds of $170,000 and the land value of the
transaction of $460,000 result in net property, plant, and equipment of $2,500,000. AEDC has
committed to gift this building to West Texas A&M University (WTAMU) to be used for a Downtown
Amarillo Center. The building is currently undergoing improvements before being transferred to
WTAMU. AEDC is overseeing this work, but the expenses for this project are being funded by a
separate not-for-profit entity.
AEDC has a commitment to a wind energy corporation to whom they have already deeded 48
acres and have an additional commitment of up to $3,300,000.

a

commitment of $1,500,000 was made to Xcel Energy (Xcel) to assist in
construction costs of Xcel's new building in downtown Amarillo. AEDC has paid $1,058,000 on
this commitment during 2016 and has a remaining commitment of approximately $442,000.

During 2015,

An additional $9,000,000 has been committed to Bell Helicopter. $3,000,000 is committed as a
grant for construction of a run stand and $6,000,000 is committed for a delivery center building
that will become a capital lease.
During 2016, a commitment of $15,000,000 was made to the Texas Tech University System to
assist with construction costs for a veterinary school
ln 2Q15, AEDC approved a grant of $2,800,000 to Amarillo College for improvements of Amarillo
Colleges facilities for their aviation tech training program. This contract was amended in October
2016 to reduce the commitment to $1,600,000. As of September 30,2016 approximately
$350,000 has been spent and AEDC has a remaining commitment of approximately $1,250,000.
Other various commitments to local entities amount to approximately $3,700,000.

AEDC is obligated to the City for leases of warehouse property being subleased to various
development and manufacturing enterprises.
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As described in Note 1, AEDC's funding is dependent upon a 1|2-percent sales tax assessed on
retail sales within the city limits of the City. This revenue source is subject to the normal economic
fluctuations experienced by the City and the surrounding region.

All of AEDC's loans have been granted to entities either newly locating or expanding operations
within the local community. AEDC's liens, if any, are often secondary to those of other lenders.
NOTE 19 - NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

Recently /ssued Accounting Pronouncements

GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, defines fair value and
describes how fair value should be measured, what assets and liabilities should be measured,
what assets and liabilities should be measured at fair value, and what information about fair value
should be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Under Statement No. 72, fair value
is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. lnvestments, which
generally are measured at fair value, are defined as a security or other asset that governments
hold primarily for the purpose of income or profit and the present service capacity of which are
based solely on their ability to generate cash or to be sold to generate cash. Before the issuance
of Statement No. 72, stale and local governments have been required to disclose how they arrived
at their measures of fair value if not based on quoted market prices. Under the new guidance,
those disclosures have been expanded to categorize fair values according to their relative
reliability and to describe positions held in many alternative investments. The implementation of
this pronouncement had no effect on AEDC's financial statements.
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporfing for Postemployment Benefits Other
Than Pensions, replaces the requirements of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employersfor Postemployment Benefits OtherThan Pensions. Among otherthings,
Statement 75 requires governments to report a liability on the face of the financial statements for
the OPEB that they provide and requires governments in all types of OPEB plans to present more
extensive note disclosures and required supplementary information about their OPEB liabilities.
The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for fiscal years beginning
after June 15,2017.

GASB Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures, requires state and local governments, for
the first time, to disclose information about tax abatement agreements. lt requires governments
to disclose information about their own tax abatements separately from information about tax
abatements that are entered into by other governments and reduce the reporting government's
tax revenues. The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015.
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AEDC has evaluated for inclusion as a subsequent event disclosure only those events that
occurred prior to February 24,2017, the date that the financial statements were issued.
ln November 2016, AEDC and the City of Amarillo jointly entered into a contract with Avalanche
Consulting, lnc. for services related to an economic development strategic plan.

This information is an integral part of the accompanying basic financial statements.
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Table'1

AMARILLO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
(Unaudited)

9/30

Taxable Sales Tax Revenue
Refunding and lmprovement Bonds, Series 2007
Principal
lnterest
Total

Principal

2017

$ 3,200,000

$ 1,553,663

4,753,663

$ 1,480,000

2018
2019
2020

3,365,000
1,620,000
1,720,000

1,384,062

4,749,062
2,793,750
2,792,500

2021

'1,825,000

2022

1,940,000
2,060,000
2,190,000
2,325,000

1,555,000
1,635,000
1,720,000
1,835,000
1,955,000
2,080,000

Year
Ending

2023
2024
2025
2026
2027

2,475,000
2,625,000

1,173,750
1,072,500
965,000
850,937
729,688
600,938
464,063
318,750
164,062

$

2,790,000
2,790,937
2,789,688
2,790,938
2,789,063

2,793,750
2,789,062

2028
2029
2030
$

25,345,000 $ 9,277,413

$34,622,413

Taxable Sales Tax Revenue
Bonds Series 2009

lnterest

$

1,813,947
1,729,859
1,617,560
1,497,753
1,370,110
1,234,307
1,089,690
935,606
771,401
596,424
410,021

2,360,000
2,515,000
2,680,000
2,855,000
3,040,000
3,240,000

,165,000

56

$

1,893,921

2,215,000

$ 31

1,970,036

Total

17

,142,175

$

3,452,560
3,452,753
3,450,1 10

211.540
$

3,450,036
3,448,921
3,448,947
3,449,859

Grand
Total
Requirements

$

8,203,699
8,197,983
6,242,697

32.29o/o

6,242,359
6,242,560
6,243,690
6,239,798

3,449,307
3,449,690
3,450,606
3,451,401
3,451,424
3,450,021

6,240,245

3,451,540

3,451,540

48,307,175 $

%of
Principal
Retired

6,238,753

6,244,356
6,240,463
3,451,424
3,450,021

82,929.588

70.70%

Table 2
AMARILLO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
HISTORIGAL CITY RECEIPTS OF 1 112% SALES TAX
(Unaudited)

Month of Receipt
October
November
December
January
February
March
April
May
June
July

$

2016

2015

2014

2013

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

4,448,147
5,135,523
4,301,690
4,099,791

$

$

4,441,512
4,916,742
4,185,916
4,229,242

4,448,574
4,995,668

$

4,003,131

2012
Actual

$

3,763,059

4,418,146

4,199,332
3,385,948
3,598,650

4,173,456

3,940,140
3,878,060
5,555,654
3,844,350
3,562,098
4,931,407
3,857,085
4,058,065

4,294,639
4,112,016

5,286,992

5

6,031 ,159

5,848,867

3,857,683
4,040,422
5,488,767

3,795J26

August

3,984,058
4,100,341
5,506,966
4,197,574
4,299,274
5,336,388

5,251,882

September

4,409,675

4,411,564

5,063,957
4.410.247

3,666,965
3,867,607
4,618,405

4,380.557

3,871,428

$ 55,998,542

$ 55,476,061

$ 54,420.898

$ 51.680.575

Total Collections

6,1 79,1

1

3,927,731
5,201,847
4,148,770

4,259,430
4,214,431
5,399,192

57

3,439,196
3,607,279

4,721,731

$

48,016,592

Table 3
AMARILLO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
HISTORICAL CORPORATION RECEIPTS OF 'II2% SALES TAX
(Unaudlted)

Month of Receipt
October
November
December
January
February
March
April
May
June
July

$

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

$ 1,480,504

$ 1,482,858

1,638,914
1,395,305
1,409,747
2,0r 0,386
1,285,894
1,346,807
1,829,589
1,419,810
1,404,810
1,799,731
1,470,521

1,665,223
1,431,546
1,370,672
1,949,622

1,482,716
1,711,841
1,433,897
1,366,597
2,059,705
1,328,019
1,366,780
1,835,655
,399,191
1,433,091
1

August

1,778,797

September

1.469.892

Total Collections

$ r8.666.181

1,265,042
1,309,244
1,733,949
1,382,923

1,391,152
1,687,986
1,470,081

$ 18.492.020

_g_1_9,140299_

58

$

1,334,377
1,472,715
1,313,390
1,292,697
1,851,885
1,281,450
I ,187,366

1,643,802
1,285,695
1,352,688
1,750,627
1 ,460,186
_$_1_?,226,858_

$

1,254,353
1,396,444
1,128,649
1,199,550
1,762,331
1,146,399
1,202,426
1,573,910
1,222,322
1,289,202
1,539,468
1,290,476

$ 16,005,530

Table 4

AMARILLO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
CALCULATION OF GOVERAGE FOR THE ISSUANCE OF ADDITIONAL OBLIGAT¡ONS
(Unaudited)

Sales Tax Collection for Fiscal Year 2016 (includes year-end accrual entries).

$ 18,697,999

Maximum Annual Debt Service (2017\
Coverage of Maximum Requirements by 2016 Sales Tax Collections

$

8,203,699

Average Annual Debt Service ................
Coverage of Average Requirements by 2016 Sales Tax Collections

$

5,923,542

59

2.28 times
3.16 times

Table 5
AMARILLO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
HISTORICAL CORPORATION REVENUE AND EXPENSES
(Unaudited)

FiscalYears Ended September 30,
2016
Revenues and Support:
Sales taxes
Earnings on investments
Miscellaneous
Non operating revenues

$

$

$

2013

$

2012

7,599,495
3,266,226

6,191,273

Total revenues

29,643,085

24,718,315

24,230,857

23,972,209

24,316,636

Expenses:
Direct development expenses
Operating expense
lnterest and fiscal charges
Nonoperating expenses

15,842,279
1,820,914
3,827,273

18,136,203
1,820,187
3,847,773
5,865.040

12,980,808

18,013,891

2,034,286

1,757,306

13,594,724
1,903,141

3,958,606

4,319,487

4,593,432

21.490,466

29.669.203

18,973,700

24.090.684

20.091.297

lncrease (Decrease) in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning

7.9,365

8,152,619
69,979,969

18,494,232

2014
18,137,944
33,698
6,059,215

Total expenses

18,697,999

2015

32,810

(4,950,888)

Net Position, Ending

(7,229.251\

$ 78,132,588

$ 69,979,969

60

$

74,930,857

45,1 53

6,551,717

17,769
8,213,313

77,819,554

76,902,951

Prior Period Adjustment

$ 16,085,554

(118,475)

5,257,157

74,930,857

17,375,339

4,225,339
73,594,215

1{798,128\

$

76,902,951

$ 77,819.554

Table 6

AMARILLO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
CURRENT INVESTMENTS AND CASH
(Unaudited)

Fair Market
Value
Cash on hand
Cash in bank
Money market mutual funds

100

$

2,911,973
11

044 128

Totalcash and cash equivalents

13,956,201

CDARS

15,950,000

Total investments and cash

_$_2e,e06291_

61

% of Total
Based on
Market Value
0.00%
9.74%
36.93%

46.67o/o

